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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Thomas Wynne House, located between U.S. Hwy. 29 and Old U.S. Hwy 29 east of Jackson 
Creek near Lilburn, dates from the early 1820's. Oral tradition suggests that Thomas 
Wynne built this plantation plain style house with later Greek Revival and Victorian 
additions, shortly after he and his family moved to Gwinnett County from South Carolina.

What is exactly the original portion of the Wynne House is unknown, however, a break 
in the foundation system as well as corresponding breaks in the flooring within the 
house suggest the house was constructed in at least two different stages.

Presently the house is a typical plantation plain style house, a two room central hall 
house with exterior end chimneys of American bond, and a shed jigsaw embellished front 
porch. The center gable on the front facade with its diamond patterned louvered vent 
is echoed in the rear one-story kitchen.

The windows of the three bay northern, or front facade are simply framed six over six 
lights, and are slightly off axis. In proportion, the windows of the second story are 
smaller and apparently earlier than the larger windows of the first floor.

The front porch is supported by four square Tuscan columns and two Tuscan pilasters are 
set flush against the front of the house. Also, the end cover boards appear as Tuscan 
pilasters which rise uninterrupted to the top of the second floor. The doorway with its 
trabeated transom and sidelights is framed by the center columns.

The eastern and western facades of the original Wynne House are almost identical with their 
boxed cornice and returns. The only deviation is the amount of butressing of the chimneys.

A southwestern view of the house reveals the L-shaped shed porch which visually unites the 
plantation plain portion which originally would have had two-three bays, with the added 
kitchen which blocked off the eastern bay.

Upon entering the Wynne House access to the second floor is gained by the straight 
staircase in the central hallway. The two main rooms downstairs contain end fireplaces, 
wide horizontal paneling and floor boards. There are three rooms off the central hall of 
second floor, the western portion being one large room with an end fireplace, while the 
eastern portion has been divided into two small rooms with no fireplace. Originally there 
was probably no fireplace because the chimney is removed slightly from the wall on the 
exterior to reveal original beaded weatherboarding. The partitions with their vertical 
paneling were added at a later date, which leads one to realize that other interior floor 
plans could have existed, possibly two rooms upstairs and two rooms downstairs.

The two downstairs mantels with their Tuscan pilasters and curved freize, 3 plus the dog­ 
eared molding of the windows and doors reflect Greek Revival influence and were probably 
c.1850 additions. The mantel in the eastern room is capped by a pediment, the western 
one is not. The western upstairs fireplace opening has a segmental arch and appears to 
date at least in the early 1820's.
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Description

In the western parlor there are remnants of two layers of wall paper, a beige leafy 
pattern over a solid blue.

Few doors remain in the Wynne House, one to the west parlor is four panels (two 
large above two small), and one to an added closet which resembles the three batten 
doors of the second floor. Most of the locks are of the swivel-bolt type and 
sometimes with peg pulls.

The second floor west room has exposed beams and wide paneling. The mantelpiece 
is non-existant, however, three square panels on the wide frieze suggest c.1810-20 
type mantel. Through the southeastern room one may gain access onto the loft 
over the kitchen.

The alterations in the Wynne House seem to correspond to three major periods c.1848, 
c.1866, c.1878. The original structure may have been converted to plantation plain 
as late as c.1848. In c.1866 the downstairs mantelpieces and molding could have been 
added. The kitchen gables, boxed cornices and returns of the east and west facades, 
the present porches, and the patitions were added around 1878. These changes 
would have conformed to the more modern trend of the Victorian style.

None of the original outbuilding have survived. By oral tradition it is known that 
a wash house existed at the creek behind the house. In the Wynne family cemetery, 
located the other side of U.S. Hwy 29, Thomas Wynne, his wife and three of their 
children are buried. A highway and commercial intrusions prevent this area from 
being nominated together with the Wynne House. Though deteriorating and over­ 
grown, one can see evidence of past landscaping in the cottonwood beside the 
front porch, the cedar, crepe myrtle and a row of daffodils in the backyard.

Significance____________Item Number 8________Page 2 ____________________

Presently the house is in a deteriorating condition, but as such has come to the 
attention of several local residents and plans have been suggested for its 
restoration as a local meeting place.

Major Bibliographical References______Item Number 9 Page 2 _____________

Norton, Nancy, Personal Inspection, April 2, 1976
Norton, Nancy, Personal Inspection, April 7, 1976
Sawyer, Janis, Personal Interview, April 1, 1976
Tax Digest, Gwinnett 1872-1875 (parts) 1875 (parts) 1880-1883
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of the Thomas Wynn House, c.1820 is its ?Lm.portance to the local community 
as a part of their early history as well as its being a prime example of a plantation plain 
structure to which additions including Greek Revival and Victorian were made as tastes 
changed.

The structure is thought to have been constructed c.1820-26, when Thomas Wynne and his 
family moved to Gwinnett County from South Carolina. The segmental arched opening of 
the fireplace which is rarely found later than the early 1820 T s supports this earlier 
date.

Thomas Wynne and his wife Mary P, Wynne (Benson) left their home in Greenville District, 
South Carolina with seven children under twelve years of age. Originally the Wynne 
Plantation was approximately 500-600 acres, according to a Wynne decendant (Mrs. Harriet 
Boozer). Mary P. Wynne was also, entitled to 130 additional acres because her husband 
was a veteran of the war of 1812. This land was probably in Alabama because most of the 
land in Georgia had been taken. According to Gwinnett County Tax Digest when Robert Reed 
inherited the land he retained the 250 acres on which the home stood. Mary Prince Benson 
Wynne's father Thomas Benson served in the Revolutionary War and her great grandfather 
was a member of the Virginia House of Burgesses.

Before Thomas Wynnes death in 1839, seven more Wynne children were born. At Thomas 1 death 
Mary P. Wynne ran the plantation with the help of her children. In 1847, her son Robert 
Reed Wynne and his bride, Martha Ann Russell moved in. One could logically believe that 
the structure was of the plantation plain style at this time. Changes in houses were often 
made with family growth, deaths and transitions in ownership. Mary P. Wynne died in 1886. 
The addition of Greek Revival mantelpieces and moldings could have been made at this time. 
According to Gwinnett County Tax Digests Robert Reed's wealth steadily increased in 1875 
the aggregate value of his whole property was $2915, therefore changes and additions in the 
house were favored. In 1878 Robert Reed Wynne and family moved to College, Park, Georgia 
and sold the house and property to a younger brother of Martha Ann, his wife, Nathan 
Russell. Sometime between 1878 and the early 1900's the kitchen, gables, boxed cornice 
and returns on the east and west focades, the present porches, and partitions were added. 
These additions followed the Victorian mode of architecture. The rise in Nathan Russell's 
wealth would also, support this idea. According to the Gwinnett County Tax Digest of 1883 
he owned five-eight pieces of silver, watches or jewelry which represented certain degree 
of luxury. At Nathan's death the property was divided up. George Alien Russell, one of 
his sons inherited the property on which the homeplace stood, and lived there until his 
death. His surviving wife Mary, remained in the house until her death in January of 1971 
at 97 years of age.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The northwestern corner of the boundary of the Wynne House site is located at the intersectioi 
of Old Hwy. 29 and U.S. Hwy. 29. From this point the boundary runs for approximately 180' at 
which point Old Hwy. 29 turns east. The boundary then runs east for approximately 810' at 
which point a wire and post fence runs southwest for approximately 541 f and ends back at 
U.S. Hwy 29. From there the boundary runs west for approximately 541' until it joins the 
beginning point.
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Thomas Wynne House - Gwinnett County 

Photographs by: David J. Kaminsky 

Date: March, 1976

1. North (front) facade.

2. East facade.

3. Southeast portion of house.

4. Mantelpiece - northwest room, first floor.

5. Fireplace - northwest room, second floor.

6. Hallway, first floor, looking northwest.

7. Second floor hallway.
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